

Distribuito in ITALIA da Li StarFish S.r.I. Via Cavour, 35 20063 Cernusco S/N (MI) telefono 02-92150794 info@listarfish.it www.listarfish.it

Manual

IDK[®] Tryptophan ELISA

For the in vitro determination of L-tryptophan in human EDTA plasma, serum and dried blood spots

Valid from 2019-10-10







Immundiagnostik AG, Stubenwald-Allee 8a, 64625 Bensheim, GermanyTel.: + 49 6251 70190-0Fax: + 49 6251 70190-363e.mail: info@immundiagnostik.comwww.immundiagnostik.com

Table of Contents

1.	INTENDED USE	21
2.	INTRODUCTION	21
3.	MATERIAL SUPPLIED	22
4.	MATERIAL REQUIRED BUT NOT SUPPLIED	23
5.	STORAGE AND PREPARATION OF REAGENTS	23
6.	STORAGE AND PREPARATION OF SAMPLES	24
	EDTA plasma and serum samples	24
	Dried blood spots	24
7.	ASSAY PROCEDURE	25
	Principle of the test	25
	Derivatisation procedure	25
	Test procedure	26
8.	RESULTS	27
9.	LIMITATIONS	29
	Biotin interference	29
10.	QUALITY CONTROL	30
	Reference Range	30
11.	PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS	30
	Precision and reproducibility	30
	Spiking recovery	31
	Dilution recovery	32
	Analytical sensitivity	32
	Specificity	33
	Correlation with HPLC-MS	33
12.	PRECAUTIONS	33
13.	TECHNICAL HINTS	34
14.	GENERAL NOTES ON THE TEST AND TEST PROCEDURE	34
15.	REFERENCES	35
	General Literature	35
	Publications using Immundiagnostik IDK® Tryptophan ELISA	36

1. INTENDED USE

This Immundiagnostik AG assay is intended for the quantitative determination of L-tryptophan in human EDTA plasma, serum and dried blood spots. For *in vitro* diagnostic use only.

For rodent specimens (mouse, rat) and for cell culture supernatant and CSF we recommend our *IDK*[®] Tryptophan high sensitive ELISA KR3730.

2. INTRODUCTION

Tryptophan is an essential amino acid that cannot be synthesised by humans and therefore must be supplied in diet. Tryptophan plays an important role in the synthesis of serotonin as it is the only source for synthesising serotonin (see figure 1).

Serotonin is released from the appendices of a widespread transmitter system with global modulating effects on different areas of life. The activity of this system depends not least on the actual tryptophan level.



Figure 1: Synthesis of serotonin and melatonin *via* tryptophan (left), and shifting of the metabolism of tryptophan to the kynurenine-pathway *via* the enzyme indoleamine 2,3dioxygenase (right). When tryptophan in plasma decreases, it is not available for serotonin synthesis and the following melatonin production. As a result, fluctuations of mood, aggression, sleep and eating disorder, or depression can occur. The symptoms of these diseases can be eased by administration of tryptophan. However, such a treatment requires the knowledge of the tryptophan level, which can be determined with this test.

Cat. No.	Label	Kit Components	Quantity
K 7730	PLATE	Microtiter plate, pre-coated	12 x 8 wells
K 7730	STD	Standards, ready-to-use (0; 10; 20; 40; 80; 320 μmol/l)	6 x 200 μl
K 7730	CTRL 1	Control, ready-to-use (see specification for range)	1 x 200 µl
K 7730	CTRL 2	Control, ready-to-use (see specification for range)	1 x 200 µl
K 0006.C.100	WASHBUF A	Wash buffer concentrate, 10x	2 x 100 ml
K 7730	AB	L-tryptophan antibody, lyophilised	1 vial
K 7730	CONJ	Conjugate concentrate, peroxidase-labelled	1 x 65 µl
K 0010.13	CONJBUF	Conjugate stabilizing buffer, ready-to-use	1 x 13 ml
K 7730	REABUF	Reaction buffer, ready-to-use	1 x 110 ml
K 7730	DER	Derivatisation reagent, lyophilised	4 x 25 mg
K 0008.07	DMSO	Dimethylsulfoxide (DMSO)	1 x 7 ml
K 0002.15	SUB	Substrate (tetramethylbenzidine), ready-to-use 1 x 15	
K 0003.15	STOP	Stop solution, ready-to-use 1 x 15 m	

3. MATERIAL SUPPLIED

For reorders of single components, use the catalogue number followed by the label as product number.

4. MATERIAL REQUIRED BUT NOT SUPPLIED

- Ultrapure water*
- Dried blood spot carrier such as DrySpot-ID cat. no. DZ9020ID or DZ9021ID
- Calibrated precision pipets and 10-1000 µl single use tips
- Foil to cover the microtiter plate
- Horizontal microtiter plate shaker
- Multi-channel pipets or repeater pipets
- Vortex
- Centrifuge, 3000 *g*
- Standard single use laboratory glass or plastic vials, cups, etc.
- Microtiter plate reader (required filters see chapter 7)

* Immundiagnostik AG recommends the use of ultrapure water (water type 1; ISO 3696), which is free of undissolved and colloidal ions and organic molecules (free of particles > 0.2 µm) with an electrical conductivity of 0.055 µS/cm at 25 °C (\geq 18.2 M Ω cm).

5. STORAGE AND PREPARATION OF REAGENTS

- To run the assay more than once, ensure that reagents are stored at the conditions stated on the label. **Prepare only the appropriate amount necessary for each assay**. The kit can be used up to 4 times within the expiry date stated on the label.
- Reagents with a volume less than **100 µl** should be centrifuged before use to avoid loss of volume.
- Preparation of the wash buffer: The wash buffer concentrate (WASHBUF A) has to be diluted with ultrapure water 1:10 before use (100 ml WASHBUF A + 900 ml ultrapure water), mix well. Crystals could occur due to high salt concentration in the concentrate. Before dilution, the crystals have to be redissolved at room temperature or in a water bath at 37 °C. The WASHBUF A is stable at 2-8 °C until the expiry date stated on the label. Wash buffer (1:10 diluted WASHBUF A) can be stored in a closed flask at 2-8 °C for 1 month.
- **DMSO** crystallises at 2-8 °C. Before use, bring to room temperature to dissolve the crystals.
- Reconstitute the content of one vial of derivatisation reagent (DER) (25 mg) with 1.5 ml DMSO. Allow to dissolve for 10 minutes and mix thoroughly with a vortex-mixer. The derivatisation reagent must be prepared immediately before use. When more than one vial is to be used, combine the contents and

mix prior to use. Discard any rest of the reagent after use. Please note: DMSO attacks all plastics but not polypropylene products and laboratory glass.

- The **lyophilised L-tryptophan antibody (AB)** is stable at **2-8** °C until the expiry date stated on the label. Reconstitute the AB with 6 ml of wash buffer. L-tryptophan antibody (reconstituted AB) can be stored at 2-8 °C for 2 months.
- Preparation of the conjugate: Before use, the conjugate concentrate has to be diluted 1:201 with conjugate stabilizing buffer (CONJBUF) (e.g. 60 µl CONJ + 12 ml CONJBUF, prepare only the required amount). The CONJ is stable at 2-8 °C until the expiry date stated on the label. Conjugate (1:201 diluted CONJ) can be stored at 2-8 °C for 1 month.
- All other test reagents are ready-to-use. Test reagents are stable until the expiry date (see label) when stored at **2-8** °C.

6. STORAGE AND PREPARATION OF SAMPLES

EDTA plasma and serum samples

- Serum and EDTA-Plasma samples are stable for 3 days at 2-8°C or at room temperature. For longer storage keep samples frozen at -20 °C.
- Samples are used **undiluted**.

Samples from patients with tryptophan supplementation (e.g. in depletion studies) probably require dilution. We recommend diluting these samples 1:2 with REABUF (e.g. 25 μ l sample + 25 μ l REABUF).

• For sample preparation, a derivatisation reagent is added (see derivatisation procedure).

Dried blood spots

Collection and storage of dried blood spots

50 µl whole blood dripped on a dried sample carrier cleared by Immundiagnostik AG are suitable as sample material after complete drying. We recommend DrySpot-ID (catalogue no. DZ9020ID or DZ9021ID) as dried blood spot carrier. The moistened cards are stable for 8 days at room temperature. For longer storage, store at -20°C in a dry place.

For sample preparation, a derivatisation reagent is added (see derivatisation procedure).

7. ASSAY PROCEDURE

Principle of the test

This ELISA is designed for the quantitative determination of L-tryptophan. The assay is based on the method of competitive enzyme linked immunoassays.

The sample preparation includes the addition of a derivatisation reagent for tryptophan derivatisation. Afterwards, the treated samples and a polyclonal L-tryptophan antiserum are incubated in the wells of a microtiter plate coated with L-tryptophan derivative (tracer). During the incubation period, the target L-tryptophan in the sample competes with the tracer, immobilised on the wall of the microtiter wells, for the binding of the polyclonal antibodies.

During the second incubation step, a peroxidase-conjugated antibody is added to each microtiter well to detect the L-tryptophan antibodies. After washing away the unbound components, tetramethylbenzidine (TMB) is added as a peroxidase substrate. Finally, the enzymatic reaction is terminated by an acidic stop solution. The colour changes from blue to yellow, and the absorbance is measured in the photometer at 450 nm. The intensity of the yellow colour is inverse proportional to the L-tryptophan concentration in the sample; this means, high L-tryptophan concentration in the sample reduces the concentration of tracer-bound antibodies and lowers the photometric signal. A dose response curve of absorbance unit (optical density, OD at 450 nm) vs. concentration is generated, using the values obtained from the standard. L-tryptophan, present in the patient samples, is determined directly from this curve.

Derivatisation procedure

Bring **all reagents and samples to room temperature** (15-30 °C) and mix well.

Derivatisation of standards, controls and samples is carried out in single analysis in 1.5 ml polypropylene tubes.

We recommend preparing one derivatisation per standard, control and sample and transferring it in duplicate determinations into the wells of the microtiter plate.

EDTA plasma and serum samples, standards and controls

1.	Add 25 µl standard (STD)/ control (CTRL)/ sample in labelled 1.5 ml poly- propylene tubes.
2.	Add 1 ml reaction buffer (REABUF) into each tube (STD, CTRL, sample).

Add 50 μl of freshly prepared derivatisation reagent into each tube (STD, CTRL, sample) and mix thoroughly by repeated inversion or several seconds on a vortex mixer.
Incubate for 45 min at room temperature (15-30°C) on a horizontal shaker.

 $2 \times 50 \mu$ l of the derivatised standards, controls and samples are used in the ELISA as duplicates.

Dried blood spots, standards and controls

1.	Remove filter from sampling device and put it in a labelled 1.5 ml poly- propylene tube. Add 1 ml reaction buffer (REABUF) to each sample, mix thoroughly. Allow sample to stand for 30 min at room temperature (15-30°C), afterwards mix thoroughly.
2.	Add 25 µl standard (STD)/ control (CTRL) in labelled 1.5 ml polypropylene tubes. Add 1 ml reaction buffer (REABUF) to the standards and controls.
3.	Add 50 µl of freshly prepared derivatisation reagent into each tube (STD, CTRL, sample) and mix thoroughly by repeated inversion or several seconds on a vortex mixer.
4.	Incubate for 45 min at room temperature (15-30°C) on a horizontal shaker.

 $2\ x\ 50\ \mu l$ of the derivatised standards, controls and samples are used in the ELISA as duplicates.

Test procedure

Mark the positions of standards/controls/samples in duplicate on a protocol sheet.

Take as many microtiter strips (PLATE) as needed from the kit. Store unused strips covered with foil at 2-8 °C. Strips are stable until expiry date stated on the label. Please note: Do not wash the plate!

	For the analysis in duplicate take 2 x 50 µl of the derivatised standards/
5.	controls/samples out of the tubes and add into the respective wells of
	the microtiter plate.

6.	Add 50 µl L-tryptophan antibody into each well of the microtiter plate.
7.	Cover the strips tightly and incubate for 2 hours at room temperature (15-30°C) on a horizontal shaker, or incubate over night at 2-8 °C.
8.	Discard the content of each well and wash 5 times with 250 µl wash buffer . After the final washing step, remove residual wash buffer by firmly tapping the plate on absorbent paper.
9.	Add 100 μl conjugate into each well.
10.	Cover the strips and incubate for 1 hour at room temperature (15-30 °C) on a horizontal shaker .
11.	Discard the content of each well and wash 5 times with 250 µl wash buffer . After the final washing step, remove residual wash buffer by firmly tapping the plate on absorbent paper.
12.	Add 100 μl substrate (SUB) into each well.
13.	Incubate for 10-15 min * at room temperature (15-30 °C) in the dark.
14.	Add 100 µl stop solution (STOP) into each well and mix well.
15.	Determine absorption immediately with an ELISA reader at 450 nm against 620 nm (or 690 nm) as a reference. If no reference wavelength is available, read only at 450 nm. If the extinction of the highest standard exceeds the range of the photometer, absorption must be measured immediately at 405 nm against 620 nm (690 nm) as a reference.

* The intensity of the colour change is temperature sensitive. We recommend observing the colour change and stopping the reaction upon good differentiation.

For automated ELISA processors, the given protocol may need to be adjusted according to the specific features of the respective automated platform. For further details please contact your supplier or Immundiagnostik AG.

8. RESULTS

The following algorithms can be used alternatively to calculate the results. We recommend using the 4 parameter algorithm.

1. 4 parameter algorithm

It is recommended to use a linear ordinate for optical density and a logarithmic abscissa for concentration. When using a logarithmic abscissa, the zero standard must be specified with a value less than 1 (e.g. 0.001).

2. Point-to-point calculation

We recommend a linear ordinate for optical density and a linear abscissa for concentration.

3. Spline algorithm

We recommend a linear ordinate for optical density and a linear abscissa for concentration.

The plausibility of the duplicate values should be examined before the automatic evaluation of the results. If this option is not available with the program used, the duplicate values should be evaluated manually.

EDTA plasma and serum

No factor is required.

The results from diluted samples must be multiplied by this dilution factor.

Dried blood spots

The obtained results have to be multiplied by the **factor of 1.5** to get the actual concentrations.

In the following, an example of a calibration curve is given. Do not use it for the calculation of your results.



9. LIMITATIONS

Samples with concentrations above the measurement range can be diluted with reaction buffer and re-assayed. Please consider this dilution factor when calculating the results.

Samples with concentrations lower than the measurement range cannot be clearly quantified.

The upper limit of the measurement range can be calculated as:

highest concentration of the standard curve × sample dilution factor to be used

The lower limit of the measurement range can be calculated as:

LoB × sample dilution factor to be used

LoB see chapter "Performance Characteristics".

Biotin interference

Samples containing a biotin concentration of < 400 ng/ml show a change of the results of \leq 25 %. Higher concentrations of biotin can lead to falsely low results. Patients taking > 5 mg biotin per day should wait at least 24 hours after taking biotin to have their samples collected. Results of patients taking biotin supplements or receiving a high-dose biotin therapy should generally be interpreted along with the total clinical picture.

10. QUALITY CONTROL

Immundiagnostik AG recommends the use of external controls for internal quality control, if possible.

Control samples should be analysed with each run. Results, generated from the analysis of control samples, should be evaluated for acceptability using appropriate statistical methods. The results for the patient samples may not be valid if within the same assay one or more values of the quality control samples are outside of the acceptable limits.

Reference Range

Serum

The normal range was generated from data of the Hordaland Health study¹. Based on the results of 5,519 persons² a median of 68 μ mol/l was obtained. From median minus1 standard deviation a normal range of > 55 was calculated.

We recommend each laboratory to establish its own reference range.

11. PERFORMANCE CHARACTERISTICS

Precision and reproducibility

Plasma, serum

Repeatability (Intra-Assay); n = 14

The repeatability was assessed with 2 samples under constant parameters (same operator, measurement system, day and kit lot) in single determinations.

sample	L-tryptophan [µmol/l]	CV [%]
1	51.4	4.3
2	105.7	6.9

¹ Zuo H et al (2016): Plasma Biomarkers of Inflammation, the Kynurenine Pathway, and Risks of All-Cause, Cancer, and Cardiovascular Disease Mortality. *American Journal of Epidemiology*. 2016;**183**(4):249-258

² The study included 7,015 subjects. However, only the patients who were still alive at the conclusion of the study (after 14 years) were included in the assessment of the statistical data.

Reproducibility (Inter-Assay); n = 7

The reproducibility was assessed with 2 samples under varying parameters (different operators, measurement systems, days and kit lots) in duplicate determinations.

sample	L-tryptophan [µmol/l]	CV [%]
1	63.7	8.4
2	60.6	9.1

Dried blood spot

Repeatability (Intra-Assay); n = 10

The repeatability was assessed with 2 samples on 10 dried blood spot carriers each, under constant parameters (same operator, measurement system, day and kit lot) in duplicate determinations.

sample	L-tryptophan [µmol/l]	CV [%]
1	47.8	10.2
2	70.9	9.8

Reproducibility (Inter-Assay); n = 12

The reproducibility was assessed with 2 samples on 12 dried blood spot carriers each, under varying parameters (different operators, measurement systems, days and kit lots) in duplicate determinations.

sample	L-tryptophan [µmol/l]	CV [%]
1	53.0	6.2
2	82.1	10.6

Spiking recovery

2 plasma samples and 1 serum sample were spiked with different L-tryptophan concentrations and measured in this assay (n = 2). The mean recovery rate was 97.2 %.

sample [µmol/l]	spike [µmol/l]	expected [µmol/l]	measured [µmol/l]	recovery [%]
66.9	50	116.8	108.0	92.5
00.0	100	166.8	151.1	90.6
641	50	114.1	122.1	107.0
04.1	100	164.1	184.9	112.7
60.0	50	119.9	112.8	94.2
09.9	100	169.9	146.9	86.5

Dilution recovery

2 serum samples were diluted and measured in this assay. The mean recovery was 96.8 % (n = 2).

sample [µmol/l]	dilution	expected [µmol/l]	measured [µmol/l]	recovery [%]
	1:2	45.8	46.7	102.0
01 5	1:3	30.5	27.5	90.1
91.5	1:4	22.9	22.7	99.4
	1:5	18.3	17.7	96.6
	1:2	44.8	41.2	91.9
90 C	1:3	29.9	25.2	84.5
09.0	1:4	22.4	21.9	97.6
	1:5	17.9	21.1	117.5

Analytical sensitivity

Limit of blank, LoB	4.9 μmol/l
Limit of detection, LoD	8.0 μmol/l
Limit of quantitation, LoQ	10.0 µmol/l

The evaluation was performed according to the CLSI guideline EP-17-A2. The specified accuracy goal for the LoQ was 15 % CV.

Specificity

The specificity of the antibody was tested by measuring the cross-reactivity against a range of compounds with structural similarity to L-tryptophan. The specificity is calculated in percent in relation to the tryptophan-binding activity.

5-HTP (5-hydroxytryptophan)	< 0.5 %
L-phenylalanine	< 0.1 %
L-tyrosine	< 0.1 %

Correlation with HPLC-MS

10 samples were measured with this ELISA and HPLC-MS. The correlation was r = 0.98.



12. PRECAUTIONS

- All reagents in the kit package are for *in vitro* diagnostic use only.
- Human materials used in kit components were tested and found to be negative for HIV, Hepatitis B and Hepatitis C. However, for safety reasons, all kit components should be treated as potentially infectious.
- Kit reagents contain sodium azide or ProClin as bactericides. Sodium azide and ProClin are toxic. Substrates for the enzymatic colour reactions are toxic and carcinogenic. Avoid contact with skin or mucous membranes.

• The stop solution consists of diluted sulfuric acid, a strong acid. Although diluted, it still must be handled with care. It can cause burns and should be handled with gloves, eye protection, and appropriate protective clothing. Any spill should be wiped up immediately with copious quantities of water. Do not breathe vapour and avoid inhalation.

13. TECHNICAL HINTS

- Do not interchange different lot numbers of any kit component within the same assay. Furthermore, we recommend not assembling wells of different microtiter plates for analysis, even if they are of the same batch.
- Control Samples should be analysed with each run.
- Reagents should not be used beyond the expiration date stated on the kit label.
- Substrate solution should remain colourless until use.
- To ensure accurate results proper adhesion of plate sealers during incubation steps is necessary.
- Avoid foaming when mixing reagents.
- Do not mix plugs and caps from different reagents.
- The assay should always be performed according to the enclosed manual.

14. GENERAL NOTES ON THE TEST AND TEST PROCEDURE

- This assay was produced and distributed according to the IVD guidelines of 98/79/EC.
- The guidelines for medical laboratories should be followed.
- *IDK*[®] is a trademark of Immundiagnostik AG.
- Incubation time, incubation temperature, and pipetting volumes of the components are defined by the producer. Any variation of the test procedure, which is not coordinated with the producer, may influence the results of the test. Immundiagnostik AG can therefore not be held responsible for any damage resulting from incorrect use.
- Warranty claims and complaints regarding deficiencies must be logged within 14 days after receipt of the product. The product should be sent to Immundiagnostik AG along with a written complaint.

15. REFERENCES

General Literature

- 1. Brandacher G, Hoeller E, Fuchs D, Weiss HG. Chronic immune activation underlies morbid obesity: is IDO a key player. *Curr Drug Metab.* 2007; **8** (3): 289-95.
- 2. Chuang SC, Fanidi A, Ueland PM et al: Circulating biomarkers of tryptophan and the kynurenine pathway and lung cancer risk. *Cancer Epidemiol Biomarkers Prev.* 2014 Mar;**23**(3):461-8
- 3. Ciorba MA: Indoleamine 2,3 dioxygenase in intestinal disease. *Curr Opin Gastroenterol*. 2013 Mar;**29**(2):146-52
- 4. Creelan BC, Antonia S, Bepler G, Garrett TJ, Simon GR, Soliman HH: Indoleamine 2,3-dioxygenase activity and clinical outcome following induction chemotherapy and concurrent chemoradiation in Stage III non-small cell lung cancer. *Oncoimmunology*. 2013 Mar 1;**2**(3):e23428
- 5. Dolina S, Margalit D, Malitsky S, Rabinkov A: Attention-deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) as a pyridoxine-dependent condition: urinary diagnostic biomarkers. *Med Hypotheses*. 2014 Jan;**82**(1):111-6.
- 6. Grozdics E, Berta L, Bajnok A, Veres G, Ilisz I, Klivényi P, Rigó J Jr, Vécsei L, Tulassay T, Toldi G: B7 costimulation and intracellular indoleamine-2,3-dioxygenase (IDO) expression in peripheral blood of healthy pregnant and non-pregnant women. *BMC Pregnancy Childbirth*. 2014 Sep 4;**14**:306
- 7. Gupta NK, Thaker AI, Kanuri N, Riehl TE, Rowley CW, Stenson WF, Ciorba MA: Serum analysis of tryptophan catabolism pathway: correlation with Crohn's disease activity. *Inflamm Bowel Dis*. 2012 Jul;**18**(7):1214-20.
- 8. Hyangin Kim, Lucy Chen, Grewo Lim, Backil Sung, Shuxing Wang, Michael F. McCabe, Gabriel Rusanescu, Liling Yang, Yinghong Tian, Jianren Mao: Brain indoleamine 2,3-dioxygenase contributes to the comorbidity of pain and depression. *J Clin Invest.* 2012 August 1; **122**(8): 2940–2954.
- 9. Miura H, Ozaki N, Sawada M, Isobe K, Ohta T, Nagatsu T: A link between stress and depression: Shifts in the balance between the kynurenine and serotonin pathways of tryptophan metabolism and the etiology and pathophysiology of depression; *Stress.* 2008 May;**11**(3):198-209.
- 10.Myint AM, Bondy B, Baghai TC, Eser D, Nothdurfter C, Schüle C, Zill P, Müller N, Rupprecht R, Schwarz MJ: Tryptophan metabolism and immunogenetics in major depression: a role for interferon-γ gene. *Brain Behav Immun*. 2013 Jul;**31**:128-33

- 11.Pedersen ER, Svingen GF, Schartum-Hansen H, Ueland PM, Ebbing M, Nordrehaug JE, Igland J, Seifert R, Nilsen RM, Nygård O: Urinary excretion of kynurenine and tryptophan, cardiovascular events, and mortality after elective coronary angiography. *Eur Heart J*. 2013 Sep;**34**(34):2689-96.
- 12.Ristagno G, Latini R, Vaahersalo J, Masson S, Kurola J, Varpula T, Lucchetti J, Fracasso C, Guiso G, Montanelli A, Barlera S, Gobbi M, Tiainen M, Pettilä V, Skrifvars MB; FINNRESUSCI Investigators: Early activation of the kynurenine pathway predicts early death and long-term outcome in patients resuscitated from out-of-hospital cardiac arrest. *J Am Heart Assoc*. 2014;**3**:e001094
- 13.Sulo G, Vollset SE, Nygård O, Midttun Ø, Ueland PM, Eussen SJ, Pedersen ER, Tell GS: Neopterin and kynurenine-tryptophan ratio as predictors of coronary events in older adults, the Hordaland Health Study. *Int J Cardiol.* 2013 Sep 30;**168**(2):1435-40
- 14.Suzuki Y, Suda T, Asada K, Miwa S, Suzuki M, Fujie M, Furuhashi K, Nakamura Y, Inui N, Shirai T, Hayakawa H, Nakamura H, Chida K: Serum Indoleamine 2,3-Dioxygenase Activity Predicts Prognosis of Pulmonary Tuberculosis. *Clin Vaccine Immunol*. 2012 March; **19**(3): 436–442
- 15.Wilson ST, Stanley B, Brent DA, Oquendo MA, Huang YY, Mann JJ: The tryptophan hydrolase-1 A218C polymorphism is associated with diagnosis, but not suicidal behavior, in borderline personality disorder. *AM J Med Genet B Neuropsychiatr Genet*. 2009 Mar 5; **150B** (2): 202-8.
- 16.Yan EB, Frugier T, Lim C K, Heng B, Sundaram G, Tan M, Rosenfeld J V, et al. Activation of the kynurenine pathway and increased production of the excitotoxin quinolinic acid following traumatic brain injury in humans. *J Neuroinflammation*. 2015,**12**(1), 110.
- 17.Zuo H, Ueland PM, Ulvik A, Eussen SJPM, Vollset SE, Nygård O, Midttun Ø, Theofylaktopoulou D, Meyer K, Tell GS: Plasma Biomarkers of Inflammation, the Kynurenine Pathway, and Risks of All-Cause, Cancer, and Cardiovascular Disease Mortality. *American Journal of Epidemiology*. 2016;**183**(4):249-258. doi:10.1093/ aje/kwv242

Publications using Immundiagnostik IDK[®] Tryptophan ELISA

- 18. Hildebrand P, Königschulte W, Gaber TJ, Bubenzer-Busch S, Helmbold K, Biskup CS, Langen KJ, Fink GR, Zepf FD: Effects of dietary tryptophan and phenylalanine-tyrosine depletion on phasic alertness in healthy adults A pilot study. *Food & nutrition research*. 2015;**59**:26407. doi:10.3402/fnr.v59.26407.
- 19.Zimmer P, Schmidt ME, Prentzell MT, et al. Resistance Exercise Reduces Kynurenine Pathway Metabolites in Breast Cancer Patients Undergoing

Radiotherapy. *Front Oncol.* 2019;**9**(September):1-11. doi:10.3389/fonc.2019. 00962

Used symbols:





Consult specification data sheet